
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee 
 

Date and Time Monday, 9th March, 2020 at 10.30 am 
  
Place Chute Room, EII Court, The Castle, Winchester 
  
Enquires to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
John Coughlan CBE 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the  meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting 

 
 

4. DEPUTATIONS   
 

Public Document Pack



 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 
 
 

5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

 
 

6. POST EU EXIT TRANSITION - WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS AND 
CONSIDERATIONS FOR HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  (Pages 9 - 
20) 

 
 To consider a report of the Director of Corporate Resources regarding 

the post EU exit transition.  
 
 

7. POLICY AND LEGISLATION UPDATE  (Pages 21 - 26) 
 
 To consider a report of the Director of Corporate Resources providing 

updates on relevant policies and legislation.  
 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That in relation to the following items the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if a member of the public 
were present during the items there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information within Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exempt information outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information, for the reasons set out in 
the report. 
 
 

9. NATIONAL PAY AWARD UPDATE (EXEMPT)  (Pages 27 - 32) 
 
 To consider an exempt report of the Director of Corporate Resources 

regarding the national pay award.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

 



ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 

The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance. 
 
 
County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses. 

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

AT A MEETING of the Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee of 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL held at the castle, Winchester on Tuesday, 

22nd October, 2019 
 

Chairman: 
* Councillor Stephen Reid 

 
* Councillor Keith Evans 
* Councillor Christopher Carter 
* Councillor Adrian Collett 
* Councillor Judith Grajewski 
  Councillor Keith House 
 

  Councillor Roy Perry 
* Councillor Stephen Philpott 
   
   
 

*Present 
 
 

51.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors House and Perry. 
 

52.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, having 
regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's Members' Code of 
Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising 
any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore 
all Members with a Personal Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting 
should consider, having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such 
interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code. 
 

53.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and agreed. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, the Chief Executive gave an update on the 
work being undertaken with West Sussex County Council.   
 

54.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations.  
 

55.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman welcomed the new Head of HR, Jac Broughton, to the meeting. 
He also highlighted some very positive long service and apprenticeship award 
events that he had recently attended.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

56.   PAY, POLICY AND LEGISLATION UPDATE  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources 
regarding the national pay award and potential employment related legislative 
changes.  
 
Each element of the report was briefly introduced and a number of key details 
discussed. In particular the actions taken with regard to teachers’ pay to 
regularise the position were welcomed and it was proposed and agreed to 
acknowledge that in the recommendations. It was   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That EHCC note the current position of national pay negotiations on the 
pay award and developments in relation to legislation.   
 

2. That EHCC support equality of treatment and delegate authority to make 
future decisions on the pay award for teachers employed outside 
Hampshire schools to the Director of Children’s Services. 

 

57.   ENHANCED VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY (EVR2) UPDATE  
 
[With regard to this item, Councillor Reid declared a personal interest by virtue of 
his daughter being employed by the County Council] 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources 
proposing an extension of the current enhanced voluntary redundancy offer 
(EVR2) until 31 March 2022. 
 
The report was introduced and the success of the programme in managing staff 
exits from the organisation was noted. The processes and difference between 
EVR and voluntary compulsory redundancy was explained and it was confirmed 
that individuals would be allowed to use whichever route was better for them. 
EHCC agreed that EVR was a useful tool for the efficient running of the 
organisation. It was  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That EHCC agree the extension to the EVR2 Scheme to 31 March 2022, 
noting that changes in Exit Payment legislation may affect the ability of 
this scheme to achieve the intended purpose.  
 

2. In light of the proposed changes to Exit Payment legislation, that an 
update is provided to EHCC if the EVR2 scheme needs to be amended. 

 

58.   BREXIT - UPDATE - WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
FOR HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

Page 6



3 
 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources  
providing an update on the workforce implications as a result of Brexit. 
 
In introducing the report, a number of actions being taken by the County Council 
to support staff were highlighted. The demographic profile of the workforce was 
noted and it was acknowledged that data was still being accumulated. EHCC 
recognised the risk of staff shortages in key areas and agreed that the 
departments were aware of where those risks lay and were managing them 
appropriately with ongoing monitoring. It was 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. To note the work underway in respect of the workforce in the current 
known context of Brexit. 

 

59.   HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PAY STATEMENT - FINANCIAL YEAR 
2020/21  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Executive setting out the annual 
Pay Statement. 
 
In introducing the report it was confirmed that its annual publication was a 
statutory requirement. The Statement did not contain any new data, but was a 
retrospective report. It was 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the EHCC Committee recommends to the County Council approval 
of the Pay Statement as detailed in this report and at Appendix A, setting 
out the County Council’s policies in respect of pay accountability for the 
financial year 2020/21 in accordance with the requirements of the 
Localism Act,  
 

2. That the EHCC Committee recommends to the County Council that it 
remains the appropriate Committee to agree Chief Officer remuneration, 
for Chief Officers above Grade K, including individual salary offers in 
respect of any new Chief Officer appointments, any changes to Chief 
Officer salaries after appointment and any severance packages for Chief 
Officers leaving the County Council, in accordance with the Pay 
Statement.  
 

3. That the EHCC Committee delegates authority to the Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the EHCC Committee, to make any 
changes to the draft Pay Statement consequential upon any changes to 
legislative requirements or other statutory guidance or changes to salaries 
of staff determined prior to consideration of the Pay Statement by full 
Council. 

 

60.   MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME - ASSISTANT TO THE EXECUTIVE - 
CLIMATE CHANGE  
 

Page 7



4 
 

The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer setting out 
proposals for amendments to the Members’ Allowances Scheme following the 
recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel. 
 
Members supported the recommendations and noted that this proposed 
allowance was connected with the declaration of a climate change emergency. It 
was 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the EHCC Committee recommends to the County Council that 
approval be given to amendment of the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 
2019/20, which takes into account the recommendations of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel, and the views of the EHCC 
Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 Chairman,  
 

Page 8



 
 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

Committee/Panel: Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee 

Date: 9 March 2020 

Title: Post EU Exit transition – Workforce Implications and 
Considerations for Hampshire County Council  

Report From: Director of Corporate Resources 

Contact name: Nichola Andreassen 

Tel:    01962 847361 Email: nichola.andreassen@hants.gov.uk 

    

This report was accurate when published on 28 February 2020 

 
Purpose of this report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to EHCC on the 
workforce implications as a result of exiting from the EU.  The content is 
valid as at the point of submission (28 February 2020).     
 
Recommendation 
 

2. EHCC are asked to note the work underway in respect of the workforce in the 
current known context of an EU Exit.  
 
Executive Summary  
 

3. A paper was provided to EHCC in July 2018, March and October 2019 
outlining the broad implications of the UK uncoupling from the EU. 
 

4. The position on an exit from the EU is somewhat clearer following the UK’s 
departure on 31 January with proposals for the new immigration system 
published on 19 February.  Further work has commenced to fully 
understand the impact of these proposals on the Council. 
 
EU Settlement scheme and Timeline  
 

5. Following ratification of the Withdrawal Agreement, the UK exited the 
European Union on the 31st January 2020.  This means the UK left with ‘a 
deal’ in place which, amongst other provisions, guarantees a transition 
period up till 31st December 2020.  During this period, free movement will 
continue, and the UK and EU will try to negotiate a trade deal.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
 

6. The latest data available shows that there were circa 43,000 non-UK EU 
Nationals living within the Hampshire County Council administrative area 
during the period July 2018 to June 2019. 
 

7. The latest Home Office data shows that, as at the end of September 2019, 
a total of 31,090 people from the Hampshire and Isle of Wight area, 
including 14,700 from Hampshire County Council area, had successfully 
secured settled or pre-settled status through the scheme. The 
Governments next set of statistics are due to be released in February 2020 
and are not known at the time of writing this paper.    
 

8. The EU Settlement Scheme is designed to make it straightforward for EU 
citizens and their family members to stay after the UK leaves the EU. To 
apply they only need to complete 3 key steps – prove their identity, show 
that they live in the UK, and declare any criminal convictions. 
 

9. To support people to make an application, individuals can visit the EU 
Settlement Scheme pages. The Home Office has 1500 staff working on the 
Scheme, including a team of people running a dedicated, seven-days a 
week phone service – The EU Settlement Resolution Centre. 
 

10. Across the UK, there are 300 assisted digital locations offering support to 
those who do not have the appropriate access, skills or confidence to 
complete the online form. There are also translated materials in 26 
languages available.  Assistance with ID scanning is available at 
Southampton Register Office.  
 

11. As previously shared, the Government has published a fact sheet on the 
EU Settlement Scheme (appendix 1) and continues to promote the scheme 
following the initial intensive media campaign in early September 2019. The 
County Council’s webpages provide the most up to date information to staff 
and residents including signposting to relevant local and national websites.  
 

12. The Scheme opened fully on 30 March 2019.  Given the Withdrawal 
Agreement has been ratified the deadline for applying to the EUSS is now 
30th June 2021.  
 

13. The Council continues to ensure that updated communications are 
provided to staff so that they are sighted and can, where appropriate, take 
the required action.   
 

14. The time frames for ‘uncoupling’ Britain from the EU will provide the 
Council with some time to progress the recruitment and retention 
interventions detailed below. EU citizens arriving in the UK before 31 
December 2020 and applying to the scheme by then will still be able to live, 
study, work and access benefits and services as they do now for a 
temporary period.  To remain in the UK after December 2020, EU, EEA and 
Swiss citizens moving to the UK after exit will be able to apply for European 

Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families
https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families
https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families
https://www.gov.uk/contact-ukvi-inside-outside-uk/y/inside-the-uk/eu-settlement-scheme-settled-and-pre-settled-status


 
 

Temporary Leave to Remain – which will last 36 months from the date the 
leave is granted.   
 

UK’s proposed new Immigration Policy 
 

15. From 1 January 2021, a new points-based system for immigration is 
proposed, affecting all immigration to the UK including EU nationals who 
arrive from 1 January 2021 onwards.  The proposals include reformed 
positions on ‘skilled works’ and ‘global talent systems’ but under the new 
proposals there will be no ‘low-skilled’ or temporary work’ routes into the 
UK.  
 

16. All applicants, both EU and non-EU citizens, will need to demonstrate the 
following: that they have a job offer from an approved sponsor, that the job 
offer is at the required skill level, and that they speak English.  An applicant 
will also need to earn more than the minimum salary of £23,040 to be 
eligible to make an application, although under certain circumstances the 
salary requirement will be ‘tradeable’ against other criteria.  
 

17. The Home Office have stated that they will continue to refine the system in 
the light of experience and will consider adding further flexibility into the 
system including additional attributes that can be ‘traded’ for points against 
a lower salary. They have also stated initiatives are being brought forward 
for scientists, graduates, NHS workers and those in the agricultural sector, 
however the policy statement does not mention social care. 
 

18. Currently, around one in six staff working in adult social care in England 
have a non-UK nationality.  Early considerations of the immigration system 
proposals would suggest that non-UK nationals would be ineligible to apply 
for a visa to fill County Council roles within the grade A – D bracket as 
these fall below the minimum salary threshold for immigration.  From a 
wider social care system perspective, it is likely that many care workers will 
fall into that bracket, ultimately compounding existing staffing pressures. 
 

19. The Migration Advisory Committee have been commissioned to produce a 
‘shortage occupation’ list covering all jobs encompassed by the skilled 
worker route, and to keep the list under regular review.  These occupations 
will attract extra points (which will be ‘tradeable’) in the new points-based 
system, which may help them reach the threshold of the 70 points that they 
need in order to be eligible to apply, even if they do not meet the minimum 
salary level.   Further information will be made available on the shortage 
occupations, although it is not yet known if this will include care workers. 
 
Engaging with the workforce 
 

20. Following updates provided by government, information is provided to staff 
on the Council’s website pages.  In addition to which, access to the 
ongoing ‘yammer’ forum enables staff to be engaged in discussions and 

Page 11



 
 

receive information, assurance and support where needed. Interestingly, 
the number of contacts or queries received by staff remain relatively low. 
 
The workforce – nationality profile 
 

21. Prior to February 2018, an employee was unable to record their citizenship 
within the SAP database.  Given this, we have been unable to accurately 
quantify the number of non-UK EU employees or the roles they occupy.   
 

22. However, from February 2018, an employee’s citizenship can be recorded, 
though this is being collected for new recruits rather than retrospectively. 
 

23. The table below shows the number of new recruits for the period February 
2018 to December 2019, with a breakdown of UK; UK national, EU 
national; and non-UK or EU national employees.   

 
 

 
 

24. During this period (August 2019 to December 2019) of the reported numbers, 
we have seen a slight decrease in hires from non-EU Nationals, to some of 
HCC’s ‘hard to fill’ roles (catering, nursing, care). Hire levels of EU 
nationals remain in line with previous trends, suggesting an exit from the 
EU will have a relatively small impact on respective labour markets.  

25. Data will continue to be monitored and tracked in order to identify any trends 
or specific parts of the organisation and/or roles that are being affected as 
a result of the EU Exit.  

26. Whilst we don’t have turnover data in relation to EU Nationals, the overall 
turnover for the Council was 15.03% as at March 2019.  This is below the 
UK average of 22.8%, however it is consistent with the public sector 
average of 15.7%.   This is carefully monitored within departments and for 
key roles, with measures being put in place to mitigate.  A further update on 
the position will be included in next the Workforce Report.     

Roles impacted / Recruitment and retention challenges and 
interventions 

Page 12



 
 

27. The types of jobs that EU and non-UK or EU National workers perform across 
the Council varies and there is no change to the profile as previously 
reported. Each department has considered the roles that may be impacted 
as a result of a potentially reduced labour pool and the mitigations in place 
to address recruitment and retention challenges take account of exiting the 
EU.  

28. Departments are also working closely with the agency (C2H) to ensure, as 
part of normal business, though with consideration for the EU exit, that 
effective ways of attracting and securing staff are considered and put in 
place. 

29. The interventions underway to attract and retain staff to its hard to fill roles 
(some of which are not necessarily as a direct result of the EU Exit) have 
been referenced in previous papers and are progressing well, attracting 
people from EU and non-EU countries. Key areas of focus are outlined 
below: 
 

CCBS 

30. There has been minimal change in respect of HC3S, with a small cohort of 
EU nationals being directly employed in catering professions. HC3S is 
seeking to mitigate future risk through promotion of the EU Settlement 
Status Scheme, recruitment and retention innovation and seeking to ensure 
continued access to a contingent workforce through Connect2Hampshire.    

31. Concerns continue to exist in relation to Vehicles Technicians, Warehouse 
Operatives and Facilities Management. There are known EU workers 
fulfilling lower skilled roles, such as cleaning operatives, in these areas and 
given that this is an occupation of regular turnover, it is something we are 
monitoring closely and exploratory work with Connect2Hampshire to 
develop a bank of agency operatives is underway.  

 

ETE 

32. Whilst the department does not have a reliance upon recruiting or employing 
staff from within the EU, the risk resides more specifically in respect of the 
wider construction industry which as we know relies on EU nationals for 
labour and skills, especially in London and the South East. Current skills 
shortages coupled with a buoyant, competitive market could be further 
exacerbated in existing shortage occupations e.g. Engineering, Transport 
and Highways specialisms, as a result of our exit from the EU and this 
could present a direct challenge for ETE in competing for labour. As a 
consequence, appropriate mitigations are in place including initiatives to 

Page 13



 
 

build capacity and capability within our existing workforce to ‘grow our own’ 
talent base.    
 

Adults’ Health and Care 

33. The area of workforce most likely to be impacted by the EU exit are the Care 
and Nursing staff in HCC Care.    In addition to pro-actively marketing the 
Settlement Status scheme the service has improved its nurse recruitment 
through the nursing conversion scheme which has enabled current Care 
Assistants and/or Assistant Practitioners to have their overseas nurse 
qualifications recognized in the UK.   A significant amount of work has been 
undertaken to encourage agency workers in the service to be recruited 
directly by Connect2Hampshire to improve the capacity and capability of its 
contingent workforce.   Future recruitment into the care sector will be 
significantly affected by the Government’s new immigration policy, as set 
out below in paragraph 33.  
 

Children’s Services 

34. Whilst there continues to be a shortage of skilled workers in occupations 
including social workers and residential workers, the department does not 
have a reliance upon recruiting or employing staff from the EU.  The risks 
arising from the EU exit in this area are considered limited and where there 
are challenges, appropriate mitigations are in place. Including working 
closely with Conntect2Hampshire.   
 

Schools 

35. There has been little change in the situation in relation to schools, with 
teacher recruitment at secondary level continuing to be acutely difficult, 
particularly in the core subjects – English, maths, sciences, computing and 
modern foreign languages (MFL). 

36. There is no evidence to suggest that there is an increase of EU staff leaving 
roles at present. 

37. Measures continue to be put in place to aid recruitment and retention in these 
key roles. 
 

Corporate Services 

38. It is not anticipated that de-coupling from the EU will have a direct impact on 
the majority of roles across Corporate Services.  The exception to this may 

Page 14



 
 

be administrative roles within Shared Services.  The position is being 
monitored carefully and measures are in place to aid recruitment and 
retention on an ongoing basis.  

Next Steps  

39. Following release of the latest information received in respect of the new 
immigration system, there is further work to be undertaken in order to 
understand the impact on our workforce.  The focus of attention will be on 
our ability to recruit from the non-UK workforce into directly employed roles 
and also for services and roles that have a reliance on agency and casual 
workers.    

40. The Chief Executive has asked all Departments review their workforce risks 
and mitigations in light of the updated immigration proposal, following 
which, findings being shared with EHCC in June 2020.  

41. Subject to updated risks and mitigations it is suggested that the Leader may 
wish to write to Government setting out our concerns in relation to the wider 
social care system.   

42. It will become increasingly important that we continue to take innovative 
approaches to attraction and selection, developing relationships with our 
providers, and placing a high emphasis on developing and marketing 
ourselves as an ‘employer of choice’.  

Conclusion 

43. The time frames for detailed above will enable the Council to progress 
interventions and address employment challenges.   

44. Recruitment data since February 2018 continues to suggest that the number 
and proportion of EU nationals who have gained employment with the 
County Council is relatively low (3.70%) with around half of these in roles 
that are difficult to recruit to.   

45. The County Council continues to be actively engaged in the information 
coming out from Government regarding the EU exit and the impact on our 
labour pool in order to ensure that we are able to access, secure and retain 
skilled people to deliver essential public services.  Alongside this, there 
remains a strong focus on growing, developing and retaining our current 
employees.   

  

Page 15



 
 

 
CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 

 
Links to the Strategic Plan 

 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

No 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

Yes 

 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

Workforce Report – July 2018 
 
Brexit – Workforce Implications and 
considerations – 11 July 2018 
 
Brexit – Workforce Implications and 
Considerations for Hampshire County 
Council – 13 March 2019 
 
Workforce Report – June 2019 
 
Brexit – Update - Workforce Implications 
and Considerations for Hampshire County 
Council – October 2019 
 
 

EHCC 
 
 
EHCC 
 
 
 
EHCC 
 
EHCC 
 
 
 
EHCC 

  

Page 16



 
 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:  
  

1. Equality Duty  
 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:  
 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out 
in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation);  
 
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and 
those who do not share it;  
 
 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not 
share it.   
 
Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:  
 
 The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;  
 
 Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;  
 
 Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.  
 
 

1.1  Equalities Impact Assessment:  
 
Equality objectives are not considered to be adversely affected by proposals in this 
report. 
 
  

Page 17



 
 

Appendix 1. 

 

Factsheet on the EU Settlement Scheme  

 

The EU Settlement Scheme has been fully open to the public since 30 March 2019. EU, 
other EEA and Swiss citizens can apply by 30 June 2021. 
 
What is the EU Settlement Scheme? 
The EU Settlement Scheme is a free Scheme which enables EEA and Swiss citizens 
resident in the UK, and their family members, to obtain the status they will require in 
order to live and work in the UK after 30 June 2021. 
 
Applicants only need to complete three key steps – prove their identity, show that that 
they live in the UK, and declare any criminal convictions. 
 
It is designed to be as simple and straightforward as possible. For further information, 
click here. 
 
Why do EEA citizens need to apply? 
 
The UK is leaving the EU which means that free movement will come to an end. This 
means that EEA citizens resident in the UK, and their family members, need to obtain a 
status in order to evidence their right to work, housing and benefits in the UK after 30 
June 2021. An EEA citizen with permanent residence status who wishes to continue 
living in the UK after then will either need to apply to the Scheme or, if they prefer and 
are eligible, apply for British citizenship. This is because permanent residence is a 
status acquired under EU law whereas the Scheme secures their status under UK law. 
 
Is the Scheme only available on Android? 
 
No. Use of the Identity Document Check App, currently only available on Android 
devices, is entirely optional – it is just one of several ways people will be able to verify 
their identity, including by post. 
 
There are over 80 locations where applicants can have their passport scanned and 
verified across the UK. Assisted digital support is available at over 300 locations, 
supplemented by a network of over 65 tutors who provide in home support, and there is 
also a dedicated telephone advice and support service for the Scheme. 
 
During public testing of the EU Settlement Scheme 95% of applicants successfully used 
the App to prove their identity remotely, removing the need for them to submit their 
identity document to the Home Office for manual verification. 
 
Currently, Apple iPhone users are not able to use their device to self-verify their identity 

Page 18

https://eucitizensrights.campaign.gov.uk/


 
 

using the App because it is the present policy of Apple not to allow any third party 
access to the iPhone “ID chip”. However, the Home Secretary has confirmed that the 
App will be available on Apple devices later this year. 
 
What support is available to EEA citizens? 
 
Support is available to all EEA citizens online here. 
 
To help EEA citizens apply there is also a dedicated telephone advice service – The EU 
Settlement Resolution Centre - and there are over 1,500 staff who process EU 
Settlement Scheme applications. 
 
There is an assisted digital service for EEA citizens in over 300 locations across the UK, 
offering support to those who do not have the appropriate access, skills or confidence to 
complete the online form. 
 
The Home Office has also translated communications materials into 26 languages. 
Alternative formats can be requested. 
 
The Home Office has made up to £9 million available to 57 voluntary and community 
sector organisations across the UK to help vulnerable or at-risk EEA citizens to apply.  
 
The funding will provide support to an estimated 200,000 vulnerable or at-risk EEA 
citizens. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

https://eucitizensrights.campaign.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/contact-ukvi-inside-outside-uk/y/inside-the-uk/eu-settlement-scheme-settled-and-pre-settled-status
https://www.gov.uk/contact-ukvi-inside-outside-uk/y/inside-the-uk/eu-settlement-scheme-settled-and-pre-settled-status
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/eu-settlement-scheme-community-support-for-vulnerable-citizens
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/eu-settlement-scheme-community-support-for-vulnerable-citizens


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 

Committee 

 

Employment in Hampshire County Council 

Date: 9 March 2020 

Title: Policy and Legislation Update 

Report From: Director of Corporate Resources 

 

Contact name: Nichola Andreassen 

Tel:    01962 847361 Email: Nichola.andreassen@hants.gov.uk 

Purpose of this Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to EHCC on employment-
related consultations and legislative changes.  

Recommendation(s) 

2. That EHCC note the increases in the National Living Wage and developments 
in relation to legislation.  

Executive Summary  

3. The National Living Wage will increase to £8.72 per hour from 1 April 2020 for 
those over the age of 25. This does not yet impact on HCC’s pay scales, as 
the lowest salary is £9 per hour. 

4. Updates on government consultation that have been previously reported to 
EHCC are provided.  

 

National Living Wage  

5. The Conservatives set out in their manifesto plans to raise the NLW to £10.50 
within the next five years and also to lower the age threshold from 25 to 21. 
This commitment was also included in the Queen’s speech, provided 
economic conditions allow. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Nichola.andreassen@hants.gov.uk


  

6. In line with this, the Government have recently announced that the NLW will 

rise from £8.21 to £8.72 on 1 April 2020 for workers over the age of 25, an 

increase of 6.2%.  Since the hourly rate for staff at Grade A is £9.00 and 

therefore exceeds the new NLW the County Council are not immediately 

impacted by the changes.  That said we know that the Government’s longer-

term aspirations will impact us in the future and at such time we will update 

EHCC further. 

 

Changes to Employment Legislation  

7. The Queen’s speech included an Employment Bill, which it is anticipated will 
address several other, recently closed consultations. At the time of writing, 
the draft Bill has not been released. However, the Bill will seek to increase the 
rights of employees who have caring responsibilities and those workers with 
limited employment rights, such as casual workers with no guaranteed 
working hours.  

8. Legislation has already been announced in this area, as a result of the Good 
Work Plan. These changes, coming into effect in April 2020, were reported to 
EHCC in October 2019. These include, for example, the requirement to issue 
casual workers and employees with a statement of particulars on or prior to 
day one of employment.  

9. The Parental Bereavement (Leave and Pay) Act 2018 also comes into effect 
in April 2020, providing 2 weeks paid leave for parents/carers following the 
death of a child.  

10. The Employment Bill is expected to include additional measures which have 
already been subject to previous consultations that closed during 2019; 

 A single labour market enforcement agency to ensure vulnerable workers 
are aware of and can exercise their rights  

 The right to request a more stable contract after 26 weeks’ continuous 
service  

 Extending redundancy protection period from the point an employer is 
notified of pregnancy, to 6 months after return to work  

 Extended leave and pay for employees who have sick or premature babies 
requiring neo-natal care 

11. The Employment Bill is also expected to include two new areas, which were 
in the Conservative Manifesto; 

 A weeks’ paid leave for unpaid carers  

Page 22



  

 Make flexible working the default, unless the employer has good reason 
not to do so.  

12. The proposals regarding flexible working go a step further than in the recent 
consultation, which sought views on a potential requirement for employers to 
be transparent with their policies on flexible working and family related leave.  
It is worth noting, that the Council already offers flexible working where 
business needs allow and that we will continue to do so wherever practical. 

 

Closed Consultations 

13. Government are considering responses to several consultations that have 
been reported previously to EHCC. At the time of writing, there is no update 
on the following consultations: 

14. Ethnicity pay gap reporting; legislation to require statutory reporting of the 
ethnicity pay gap, in addition to the gender pay gap. Consultation closed on 
11 January 2019.  

15. Cap on Exit Payments; The Small Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 
2015 provided for reforms on exit payments in the public sector. The 
Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2019, which caps exit 
payments, closed in January 2019. Full details of this consultation were 
provided to EHCC in June 2019. 

16. Exit Payment recovery; consultation on the draft Public Sector Exit Payment 
Recovery Regulations 2016 concluded in 2018, but the regulations have not 
yet proceeded to commencement. These regulations will require those with a 
salary above £80k to repay any exit payments made to them if they re-enter 
the public sector within 12 months. This includes any employer pension “top-
up fees”. Repayments will be on a sliding scale, depending on when in the 
12-month period a person returns to the public sector.  

17. How to reduce ill-health related job losses; this consultation includes 
measures, such as a “right to request workplace adjustments” following a 
period of ill health absence.  A Disability Strategy was announced in the 
Queen’s speech, which is expected in ‘Spring 2020’. It is expected that the 
outcome of this consultation will be provided within this strategy.  

18. Measures to address one-sided flexibility; this consultation sought views on 
introducing new rights for workers to be given reasonable notice of their 
working hours and to be compensated where their shifts are cancelled or 
curtailed without reasonable notice. Consultation closed on 11 October 2019. 

Page 23



  

19. Consultation on sexual harassment in the workplace; this consultation sought 
views on whether the legal protections under the Equality Act 2010 are 
sufficient. Measures within the consultation include but were not limited to; a 
duty on employers to prevent harassment, amendments to compensation, 
extension of protection to include volunteers and an extension of time in 
which to bring a claim. Consultation closed on 2 October 2019. 

20. Confidentiality clauses - consultation on measures to prevent misuse in 
situations of harassment or discrimination; The government responded to this 
consultation in July 2019. Its response included new legislation that will  

 prevent use of confidentiality clauses that prevent disclosure to the police, 
legal professionals and regulated health and care professionals,  

 require any limitations of confidentiality clauses to be set out in 
employment contracts and  

 enhance the legal advice that individuals receive before signing such 
clauses. 

The regulations implementing these changes have yet to be drafted.  

Consultation and Equalities 

21. It is not envisaged that there will be any equalities impact from the known 
changes.   It is envisaged that some of the legislative changes referenced 
above will make a positive impact to some staff relevant to the protected 
characteristics.  

Conclusions 

22. The landscape regarding changes to pay and employment legislation 
changes remains uncertain at the time of writing. 

23. Updates on the other matters covered by this paper will provided to EHCC 
as further details and clarity are provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 24



 
 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but potentially impacts the County 
Council’s workforce strategy 
 

 
 

Other Significant Links 
  

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   

Title Date 
Pay and Legislation Update  
Legislation Update 
Pay, Policy and Legislation Update 

28 March 2018 
28 June 2019 
22 October 2019 
 

  

 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

 

Page 25



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 

 

Equality objectives are not considered to be adversely affected by proposals in 
this report.  

 

 
 

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Post EU Exit transition - Workforce Implications and Considerations for Hampshire County Council
	7 Policy and Legislation Update
	9 National Pay Award Update (EXEMPT)

